MINUTES OF WORK SESSION
OF THE NEWPORT NEWS CITY COUNCIL
HELD IN THE 10" FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM
2400 Washington Avenue
September 8, 2009
3:30 p.m.

PRESENT: Tina L. Vick; Joseph C. Whitaker; Patricia P. Woodbury; Herbert H.
Bateman, Jr.; Joe S. Frank; Madeline McMillard &maron P. Scott ------------- 7

PN =S =N S V1) ——— S—

OTHERS PRESENT: Neil Morgan; Stuart E. Katz; Maléshington Jenkins; Alan Archer;
Cynthia Rohlf; Wanda Pierre; Allen Jackson; Lisgrizino; Collie Owens; Joseph DuRant;
LaVerne Lovett; Brian Ramaley; David Morris; RicaCaplan; Leonard Wallin; Everett
Skipper; Cathy Grimes; and Jennifer Walker

l. Property Matters
a) 494 and 496 Richneck Road Area BMP Project

Mr. Neil Morgan, Acting City Manager, introducétr. Brian Lewis, Stormwater
Manager, Department of Engineering, to report om fRichneck Road Area Drainage
Improvement project.

Mr. Lewis reminded through prior appropriatiorgquests made at the December
12, 2006 and November 7, 2007 Regular City Coumeietings, City Council was made aware
of five stormwater drainage improvement projectsdeel to reduce the effect of flooding within
the Stoney Run watershed, during unusually heawyeaents. The five projects collectively
referred to as “The Stoney Run Watershed Improvésiiewere identified in a 2005 drainage
study prepared by URS Corporation, which recommeénmmnstruction of detention basins to
provide storage of stormwater runoff, constructafninlets and storm drain pipes as well as
widening of existing drainage channels to increastem storage capacity and facilities flow.

Mr. Lewis reported, among the five recommendatjofThe Richneck Area

Regional BMP (Best Management Practices) projed’ wlentified as needing a stormwater
retention basin. The proposed retention basin evoeteive runoff from approximately 260
acres of land. Based on the design prepared by, Rr@&cquisition of significant, undeveloped,
flood-plain-restricted portions of 494 and 496 Riebk Road were required to construct the
proposed regional stormwater retention basin agced by URS. Engineering staff discussed
the possibility of the complete acquisition of pegjes located at 494 and 496 Richneck Road
with the owners, but were declined. Accordinghg Engineering staff proposed negotiating for
the portion of the properties absolutely neceskarthe project.



Page 2
Minutes of Work Session
September 8, 2009

Mr. Lewis reported appraisals were obtained fraroertified State license real
estate appraiser. The appraised value of the +at@9 partial at 494 Richneck Road was
$182,000 and the appraised value of the +2.83amtéal at 496 Richneck Road was $103,500.
While voluntary sales were hoped for in both casesdemnation could become necessary to
complete the land assembly component of the project

Mr. Lewis asked City Council to authorize the walary acquisition of, or if
necessary, condemnation of the aforementionedafmet 494 and 496 Richneck Road for their
appraised value of $285,500 and the execution lohedessary documents to effectuate the
transactions.

Mayor Frank inquired about the area that woulddtsned by the project. Mr.
Lewis replied the project area would help to drapstream, but Engineering also planned to
over design the project to reduce the rate of dispt downstream. He stated the project would
have an impact upon residents who were adjacahiet@€howan Ditch and the channel that ran
downstream adjacent to the Colony Pines subdivision

Acting City Manager Morgan inquired about the ortance of the project as
opposed to the five stormwater drainage improverpeojects referred to as “The Stoney Run
Watershed Improvements.” Mr. Lewis replied of five projects, the Richneck Area Regional
BMP project was the most important, because it daal the most to hold back flood waters.

Councilwoman McMillan understood the City had aead some type of
consensus with the owner regarding the price d@ffeal. Mr. Lewis replied the City’s appraisal
came back at approximately $950,000 for the ertieacres. When the property owners
received a certified mailed copy of the appraisakl after several phone call attempts by the
City to reach Mr. Perkins, it was confirmed that. Rerkins did not want to discuss the matter if
the City was not talking $12 million. Mr. Lewisaseéd the City hoped for voluntary acquisition,
but there was no room for negotiation.

Councilwoman Scott inquired about the locationtleé project to the Artis
property, whether it helped mitigate the problem Mgis complained about, and whether the
project would cause water to drain away from hepprty. Mr. Lewis replied that Ms. Artis
would still have some drainage issues after conguiatf the project, but ultimately the project
would tie into the Richneck Road improvements whiebuld divert the drainage; however,
there was not much the City could do about the esiftkat frequented Ms. Artis property.

b) Diascund Shores Lane/New Kent County

Acting City Manager Morgan introduced Mr. DavidoNis, Natural Resource
Manager, Department of Public Utilities.



Page 3
Minutes of Work Session
September 8, 2009

Mr. Morris stated the Diascund Creek Reservois WA00 acres in size and of the
five reservoirs in the City, was the largest inaaasd second largest in volume. He reported,
there had been no City-owned access by land orrviatea portion of a major arm of the
reservoir since the reservoir was completed in 196Broughout such time, illegal piers were
built along the reservoir without City consent amdlding permits due to non-monitoring and
control of the land.

Mr. Morris stated Waterworks had been interestedcquiring enough property
to provide access to a portion of the reservoid, apiece of property consisting of 25.68+ acres
became available. The property was appraised &5,820, or $10,319 per acre. New Kent
County assessed the parcel at $253,300. An affacquire the property for the appraised value
of $265,000 was made and accepted by the land owner

Mr. Morris explained that acquisition of the lawduld enable Waterworks’ staff
to monitor land use activities and water qualitytloé reservoir. Acquisition of the property
would also provide access for the State’s game evercand the New Kent County Sheriff's
Office as needed. The property would provide muoebded access from Route 620 to the
waters’ edge. The reservoir's water depth at kbesition was sufficient for construction of a
boat launching ramp. Waterworks would gain theessary permits and construct a boat launch
using its own crews. This would not be a publlfsy and would only be used for limited local
and state government access.

Mr. Morris reported funds for the purchase of greperty, in the amount of
$265,000, would be appropriated from WaterworkstiReed Land Fund. The Waterworks
Restricted Land Fund was established by City Cduncthe late 1980’s for acquisition of
properties needed for protection and managemehedCity’s reservoirs.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired about the total @mt of funding in the
Waterworks Restricted Land Fund. Mr. Morris reglithe total amount of funding in the
Waterworks Restricted Land Fund was $4.1 million.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired whether this pebjerovided land and water
access. Mr. Morris replied the project affordedhbtand and water access by a dedicated
roadway easement to a State road.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired about the illegérs that had been built
along the reservoir. Mr. Lewis replied the Citysnaorking with New Kent County on a way to
deal with the illegal pier issues. He stated the@ese many grandfathered rights that people
believed they had. He hoped to provide a repofitg Council on the matter within the next
several months.



Page 4
Minutes of Work Session
September 8, 2009

I. Pension and OPEB Issues

Acting City Manager Morgan stated even thoughwbeld like to have additional
time to study the issues and include his own stafigpproval, it was important for City Council
to make a decision and take action within the fiewt months, hopefully by January 1, 2010.
He felt it was important to demonstrate to thezeitis, employees, and bond rating agencies that
the City had the discipline to take meaningful @cti

Acting City Manager Morgan stated one of the ¢joes raised by City Council
was “the big picture” as it related to funding tRension and OPEB benefits. He reported the
City's FY-2009-2010 Operating Budget totaled $50@liom, in which $21 million was
dedicated to the Pension fund and $9 million watiad¢ed to Other Post Employment Benefits.
It was clear that Pension benefit funding wouldréase dramatically over the next few years.
Based on the Actuarial studies, the current fund@h®21 million had to increase to $50 million
over time. In proportion to overall dollars, a $%dlion increase was more than the growth of
the City's operating budget in a normal year amtainly, more than what was expected in the
current economy. The good news in OPEB was thetCity was not far behind what it was
required to pay by the Actuary. Further good newais, by law, the City had absolute discretion
on what it did with OPEB. The City was locked intdat it did on the Pension side because
benefits had already been earned. Acting City ManaVlorgan noted the recommended
proposals would have no impact on current retirgesjest impact on current employees, and a
huge impact upon new employees. In relation th smpacts, the City was trying to achieve a
savings of $100 million on the Annual Required Cimition (ARC) on the Pension side. A
$100 million or greater reduction in the ARC, innbs of expenditure reductions, over a ten-year
period, would be a significant and disciplined acti The City allotted $21 million for Pension
funding in FY-2010 and planned to expend $46 millio retirees, which could not be continued
over the next ten years. The yearly expenditureetioees would be reduced, over the next ten
years, if the $100 million in Pension benefit sggwere realized. The City had to increase it
ARC, over the next several years, no matter whegdssit took. He introduced Ms. Cindy Rohlf,
Assistant City Manager, to report on the Pensiarebiefunding proposals and strategies.

Ms. Rohlf noted the following Pension Plan pragdssentatively agreed to by
City Council: 1) Reduce the Multiplier to 1.85%,0Bpectively; 2) Increase the Retirement Age
by Five Years for New Hires; 3) Institute a 7-Ya#sting Period for New Hires; 4) Institute
Spousal Annuity as an Elective for New Hires; 5xlide Overtime Earnings from Average
Final Compensation (AFC), Prospectively; 6) Exclublen-Salary Earnings from AFC,
Prospectively; and 7) Use Time Actually Worked Foomputing Retirement Eligibility,
Prospectively. She stated the total impact ofptteposed Pension benefit changes would project
a cost savings of $93,670,000 over ten years. MélfRstated implementation of the above
proposals would put the City within the realm ofawhhe Acting City Manager proposed in
regards to cutting Pension benefit funding by $a0iion within ten years.



Page 5
Minutes of Work Session
September 8, 2009

Ms. Rohlf pointed out Pension benefit fund acticdready implemented: 1)

Leave Exchange Program — Reduction in Calculatio@redited Service [Employees can now
purchase two months of credited service as opptusdttee months of credited service]; and 2)
Newport News Schools — New Hires Excluded from Newdews Retirement Fund. Savings
for these proposals amounted to $30 million over years. She credited the schools for
including all new hires in the proposal and indéchthe savings could be even greater. (A copy
of the presentation, “Newport News Employees’ Retient Fund — Pension & Other Post
Employment Benefits (OPEB),” is attached and magaraof these minutes.)

Councilwoman Scott inquired about the number rapleyees eligible to retire
early due to the Leave Exchange Program. Ms. ltawgllied there were many employees
eligible to retire early due to the purchase oféetorough the Lease Exchange Program.

Mayor Frank inquired whether the Acting City Maea had looked into the
number of employees eligible to retire, their posis in the City, whether the proposal would
trigger an early retirement and what impact it vdobhve on the City. Acting City Manager
Morgan stated the proposal was not related to timeber of employees who would retire early.
He stated the proposal dealt with the amount oé tan employee could exchange for Pension
benefit credit, which would only benefit an empleyafter retirement. There was an incentive
for an employee to work longer to gain an incred®eqdsion benefit.

Ms. Rohlf stated the proposal was prospectivéip. employee who had 25 years
of service and purchased three years of retirenveedit would still have 28 years of
employment service towards their retirement. Ametpurchased, after the effective date of the
proposal, would go towards an employee’s Pensioefiieafter their retirement. The City was
not taking anything away from an employee that &dlaedy been earned.

Mayor Frank inquired about a study noting thalteavings related to the Schools
cutting all new hires from the Newport News RetiegmFund. Ms. Lovett replied she would
provide the total savings to City Council.

Councilman Bateman indicated he wanted furthegyson reducing the multiplier
to 1.75%. Ms. Rohlf replied independent savingséalucing the multiplier to 1.75% amounted
to $4.4 million for one year and $47.5 over tenrgg&owever, it could be less when all the
proposals were included as a package.

Acting City Manager Morgan stated the City woulghlize a $100 million
reduction in Pension benefit funding over ten ydéfaall the proposals were implemented.

Ms. Rohlf stated in relation to the $100 millimnsavings, the City needed to look
at a funding strategy to increase the ARC. It watsam immediate concern, but should be made



Page 6
Minutes of Work Session
September 8, 2009

part of the FY 2010-2011 budget process. She hapeeport back to City Council within the
next 30 to 45 days on whether the City neededdrease its ARC in FY 2010-2011. Staff was
hopeful to fully meet the ARC within eight yearsgwever, the Pension Board voiced concern
that the City needed to meet its ARC within fouange Ms. Rohlf stated she, Ms. Lovett and
Acting City Manager Morgan did not know whetheraauf year timeframe was realistic when
one looked at the size of the ARC.

Ms. Rohlf reported staff was continuing to stiadgupplemental plan for Public
Safety personnel should the City’'s multiplier belueed to 1.85% to remain competitive with
surrounding jurisdictions. She stated Acting Qdgnager Morgan suggested that staff report
back to the Retirement Board to receive feedbackhenissue. She introduced Ms. LaVerne
Lovett, Director, Department of Finance, to reportOPEB proposals.

Mayor Frank inquired whether Ms. Rohlf was spegkin reference to the
differential in how the City treated Public Safetsnployees as opposed to regular employees.
Ms. Rohlf replied the City was studying whether @affer its Public Safety personnel a
supplement just as what was done by the Virginiar&aent System (VRS).

Acting City Manager Morgan stated, although thékof savings was realized on
the Pension benefits side, any suppression to GfeSB would become sourcdor the Pension
fund. Even a small adjustment on the OPEB side glhe City a way to move some funding
into the Pension fund.

Mayor Frank understood any savings on the OPHEB sould be used to reduce
Pension funding, but voiced concern that instiggten cap on the City’s health insurance
premium contribution meant employees living on dixecomes would realize reductions in their
income. Post-65 retirees, who lived on fixed inesmhad a reduced capacity to absorb any
additional cost. As bad as things were budget wisecollective community had a better way to
absorb the reduction than retirees who lived oadiilncomes. He asked that staff be thoughtful
as they deliberated the changes to OPEB, and ptians be reviewed and presented to address
such circumstances. Acting City Manager Morgatest¢éhe cap only applied to Pre-65 retirees.

Ms. Lovett replied, under the current OPEB heath plan, the City’s premium
contribution was increased by a COLA. For 2008, @ity contributed 69% towards the Pre-65
Healthcare Retiree Plan and $260 each, per mootithé Post-65 Medicare Supplement Plan
for a retiree and his/her spouse.

Mayor Frank inquired about the Healthcare Refd@ith proposed by President
Barack Obama and whether it would impact the City&althcare program. Acting City
Manager Morgan replied Ms. Lovett was studyingitisee.



Page 7
Minutes of Work Session
September 8, 2009

Ms. Lovett noted the Pre-65 Retiree Plan includ€9% cap. She explained the
cap was implemented to address the City’s long-tkafility by the retiree picking up the
difference in coverage. She noted the projectiofamily coverage under the current provision
would increase the retiree’s portion and decrebseCity’s portion of premium per year. (A
copy of the illustration noting the “Projection Bamily Coverage Under Current Provision” is
on page 6 of the attached presentation, “NewpowdNEmMployees’ Retirement Fund — Pension
& Other Post Employment Benefits [OPEB].”)

Councilwoman McMillan reminded that she previgugbiced concern about the
Pre-65 Healthcare Retiree Plan. She inquired hamynretirees would be able to afford
healthcare insurance if insurance premiums inctedse 10% each year as noted in the
illustration on page 6 of the attached presentati&me inquired how many retirees would be
able to afford a $1,249 healthcare premium per mont

Ms. Lovett agreed that healthcare coverage fa-68r retirees was a huge
problem for the City and retirees.

Councilwoman McMillan stated it was a big problamd inquired whether the
City had calculated how much retirement income neidelvel employees received and how
much of their income would go towards medical iasize.

Mayor Frank inquired about the percentage of taesss Pension that went
towards their healthcare premium. For instanaetieee would not be able to afford healthcare
if their Pension benefit amounted to $800 per mamtt their insurance premium amounted to
$1,200 per month.

Ms. Lovett reminded that one-half of the Pre-6&rees opted for the Retiree-
Single plan, while one-half opted for Other headtiecplans (Single-Child; Single-Spouse; and
Family).

Councilwoman McMillan inquired about the numbénretirees that would retire
under the Post-65 Medicare Plan as opposed to 3PRefiree Plan. She felt Pre-65 retirees
might still have dependents that needed medicaé.caMs. Lovett replied there were
approximately 700 retirees in the Pre-65 Retirem Pl

Councilman Bateman inquired about the number ref@> retirees, out of the
700, who were in the family plan. Ms. Lovett replj out of the 700 retirees, 120 were in the
family plan.



Page 8
Minutes of Work Session
September 8, 2009

Ms. Lovett noted the two OPEB proposed alteregtifor the Pre-65 Retiree
Medical Plan:Council Alternative #1 - A) No change to Current City Contribution Pign
for Current and Future Retirees with 10 or moreryed service; B) Decrease City Premium
Contribution for Future Retirees with less thanyg@rs of service as of 12/31/2009; and C) No
City Contribution for New Hires; an@ouncil Alternative #2 — A) No change to Current City
Contribution Provision for Current Retirees; B) Desse City Premium Contributions for Future
Retirees; and C) No City Contribution for New Hirdgls. Lovett state€ouncil Alter native #1
amounted to a savings of $1.1 million in the fiygar and $12.4 million within ten years.
Council Alternative #2 amounted to a savings of $2.0 million in the fysar and $24 million
within ten years. Ms. Lovett noted the impactQduncil Alternative #1 and #2 to Pre-65
retirees. (A copy of the illustration noting theré-65 Retire Impact” is on page 9 of the
attached presentation, “Newport News Employeesir&aent Fund — Pension & Other Post
Employment Benefits [OPEB].”)

Councilwoman McMillan stated she had always bagiroponent of the 10 or
more year cut-off date. She supported Alternatieut of the two Alternatives because it was
less disruptive to current employees that werdrggtioser to retirement. She inquired whether
there was any possibility that the premiums forltheare would not increase by 10% per year.
Ms. Lovett replied it was possible that the prenmsuwould not increase by 10% per year, and
indicated the information provided in the presdaotatvere estimates only.

Councilwoman McMillan stated the increase of tost to the retiree was very
dramatic. Ms. Lovett agreed and stated it was jampaoblem.

Mayor Frank stated Alternative #1 only impactedpéoyees with less than 10
years of service, which meant they had more tim@lém, accommodate and adjust to the
changes.

Ms. Lovett felt Alternative #1 offered great sags to Pre-65 retirees. She noted
Alternative #1 reduced the City’s claim expensebhymillion.

There was consensus among City Council to sugpauncil Alternative #1.

Mayor Frank requested further information onc¢hst of healthcare for retirees in
relation to their retirement benefit as opposedhto percentage of premium. The information
might help City Council understand the impact tdoas Pre-65 retirees.

Ms. Lovett reported staff proposed no change he Post-65 Medicare
Supplement Plan after studying various alternativéle savings were not significant and the
plan dealt with the most fragile retirement group.



Page 9
Minutes of Work Session
September 8, 2009

There was consensus among City Council to makehamges to the Post-65
Medicare Supplement Plan.

Ms. Lovett reported staff proposed continuingstady the life insurance issue.
She indicated significant savings had been realisedOPEB by proposals made and
implemented, which warranted the recommendatiort tita changes be made to the life
insurance provision. The life insurance issue st on the table for staff to bring some
alternatives that would be fair.

Acting City Manager Morgan stated the Life Insw@a provision was a relatively
modest percentage of the overall OPEB cost, andewbasavings that would be realized would
not be dramatic. He understood the majority ofy @buncil members felt it was important to
retain the life insurance provision as its curiemel. He inquired whether there was any interest
in setting a cap on life insurance, based on ogafary. He suggested employees that retired
with a larger Pension would pay more for life irmwe as opposed to those who retired with a
modest Pension.

Ms. Lovett noted the two current Life Insurancevssions included: 1) the
grandfathered group of retirees that received aie-¢f their final salary in life insurance
coverage; and 2) Retirees who received one-hatheaf salary in life insurance coverage that
decreased to $10,000 over four years. Staff figltsecond group should be left alone because
they already had a provision that dealt with loegyt liability; however staff was considering
instituting a cap on the grandfathered group ofees.

Mayor Frank stated he preferred leaving the lIifsurance as it was. He
suggested that City Council review the savingsiarghcts on the proposals which they had met
consensus on. Should further reductions becomeseacry they could revisit the life insurance
issue. He suggested leaving the life insurands atirrent level.

Mayor Frank asked staff to provide City Counciithwa list of the rejected
proposals, should they have to be revisited in tiwvthree years. He felt the progress made up-
to-date was substantial.

Councilwoman McMillan agreed with leaving theeliinsurance provision at its
current level. She stated City Council did not\wnehat was in a retiree’s portfolio. If a retiree
had planned on a certain amount of life insurahea it should be left alone.

There was consensus among City Council to |elaedife insurance provision at
its current level.



Page 10
Minutes of Work Session
September 8, 2009

Councilwoman Vick congratulated Ms. Lovett on breefing package attached to
the memo in the September 8, 2009 City Council Weeksion agenda.

Acting City Manager Morgan stated he would meé&hwhe Pension Board to
obtain accurate calculations on the Pension anér@Rbst Employment Benefit proposals and
report back to City Council by the first or secomgeting in October 2009. He hoped to
provide City Council with a definitive recommendstion the changes to the Pension and Other
Post Employment Benefits to meet the City’s deadthJanuary 1, 2010.

Mayor Frank thanked staff for the presentatiod ardicated it was clearer to
understand. He stated, on behalf of the emplogedgetirees, it was important to bring closure
to the matter as soon as possible. He hoped wummthe matter in October or November 2009
for implementation in 2010.

City Council was in consensus to finalize thenges to the Pension and Other
Post Employment Benefits proposals by October aradther 2009 for implementation in 2010.

Miscellaneous Matter

City Attorney Katz stated Item D.7., on the Segter 8, 2009 Regular City
Council agenda, regarding the Acting City Managgreament, had been revised due to a
concern raised by Councilwoman McMillan. He sta@alncilwoman McMillan questioned
verbiage on page 4, Iltem 9, of the agreement tladd attendance at meetings, conferences,
seminars and continuing professional education rprog “shall be paid by the City.”
Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the ActingtyCManager had requested that such
verbiage be added to the agreement. City AttoKety stated the verbiage was pulled from the
agreement of former City Manager Randy Hildebrardé stated a revised agreement would be
provided to City Council, noting attendance at nmggt, conferences, seminars and continuing
professional education programs “were encourage(®’ copy of the revised agreement is
attached and made a part of these minutes.)

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS,
ON MOTION, COUNCIL ADJOURNED AT 5:10 P.M.

Jennifer D. Walker Joe S. Frank
Chief Deputy City Clerk Mayor

Presiding Officer
A true copy, teste:

City Clerk



